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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL NO. 18-015 

LABOR PRODUCTIVITY SOFTWARE 

 

 ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 
 

 Submittal Deadline: 3:00 PM, Thursday, January 2, 2018 
 

 This Addendum No. 1 hereby forms and is made a part of the Request for Proposal No. 18-015, dated 

December 1, 2017, for LABOR PRODUCTIVITY SOFTWARE. Respondent must acknowledge receipt 

of this addendum in Section 5 of the RFP (Pricing Schedule). 

 

 QUESTION 1:  From a scale perspective, how many employees have you added over the past 2-3 

years?  Same question for Job Codes and Departments. 

 

 ANSWER 1:   

Total regular employees at beginning of each Fiscal Year (September 1 – August 31): 

FY15: 11,120 

FY16: 11,441 

FY17: 11,897 

FY18: 12,123 

 

Total number of active job codes in HR system is 1645. Total number of active departments 

No. of departments that are actually populated at the beginning of each FY: 

FY15: 822 

FY16: 895 

FY17: 925 

FY18: 939 

 

No of job codes that are actually populated at the beginning of each FY: 

FY15: 1275 

FY16: 1309 

FY17: 1295 

FY18: 1298 

 

 QUESTION 2:  Is the preference to look at a true Cloud solution or are you open to on premise or 

a hybrid approach based on UTMB methodology   

 ANSWER 2:  Cloud solution preferred but open 

 

 QUESTION 3: Is there visibility into root causes of OT and Contract Labor usage 

 ANSWER 3: 

The lack of visibility is a current issue and part of the rationale behind requesting a system to 

facilitate monitoring all aspects of productivity.  We are currently able to track these as 

discreet amounts, but the ability to identify causative events on an interval basis is difficult. 
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 QUESTION 4: Do you currently have the capability to analyze labor trends by day across the 

organization?   

 ANSWER 4: No 

 QUESTION 5: How is target utilization from budget derived/captured    

 ANSWER 5:  

Generally, by comparing monthly FTE reports which report both actual and budget; 

Hospitals & Clinics also report worked hours per unit of service and paid hours per unit of 

service 

 QUESTION 6: How is actual utilization / volume data converted to units of measure (patient 

days, OR hours, square foot); rvu conversations, etc 

 ANSWER 6:  

Using charge volume information, we calculate productivity statistics for the departments; 

some departments use a manually reported statistic. Where possible we are pulling the 

utilization or volume information directly (in the way it is needed for downstream 

calculation).  There are some departments reporting their data manually and we are 

interested in automating this. 

 

 QUESTION 7: How many users of the system will be required upon rollout?   

 ANSWER 7:  

Refer to the grid of current access in 4.5.1 however it will depend on who the “perceived” 

users are.  If the solution expects this to be in the hands of executives or managers only, then 

approximately 1760 would need training/access.  If the solution needs it in the hands of staff 

creating the plan for labor use as well as those responsible for managing the unit budget and 

answering variances, then 2200 would need training/access 

 

 QUESTION 8: Approximately how many end users will need training? Can UTMB provide 

anticipated numbers of end users per skillset?   

ANSWER 8:  

See answer 7, the breakdown is also in 4.5.1 depending on the role that they fill.   

 

 QUESTION 9: Can UTMB describe what is anticipated for post go-live support? (I.e. how many 

hours, types of requests, how to contact, etc.)   

 ANSWER 9: N/A 
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 QUESTION 10: Can UTMB further clarify what is to be expected in regards to an aggressive 

implementation? What is the timeframe that is going to be anticipated from the contractor?   

 ANSWER 10:  

The Implementation is expected to begin no later than March and be complete by July 31, 

and effectively use the tool and techniques by August 31. 

 

 QUESTION 11: Are included Business Units, Locations, Departments utilizing the same pay 

period calendar?   

 ANSWER 11: Yes  

 QUESTION 12: Is there standardization across all dimensionality to be able to do comparable 

analytics (job codes mean same things across medical centers/organization, etc)?   

 ANSWER 12: 

All areas utilize the same set of job codes.  There may need to be aggregation of some (for 

example registered nurses have multiple job codes depending on their placement on the 

clinical ladder). 

 

 QUESTION 13: Will reporting needs be consistent across all business units or will reporting vary 

by business unit 

 ANSWER 13: It will vary with the work being done by the business unit. 

 

 QUESTION 14: Are there standardized volume metrics in place for departments 

  

ANSWER 14:  

Yes, clinics reporting clinic visits, nursing units report patient and observation days, 

ancillary areas report procedures; non-revenue generating departments use days in the 

month 

 QUESTION 15: Will there be a need to input or enter a productivity standard override?    

  

ANSWER 15: N/A 

 

 

 QUESTION 16: Is there a third-party scheduling tool that UTMB utilizes for scheduling of jobs? 

 

ANSWER 16: Currently Kronos.   
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 QUESTION 17: Will there be a need to re-load any historical data or will we only be loading a 

rolling pay period of data?  If rolling, how much data needs to be loaded each time?   

  ANSWER 17: 

UTMB may or may not be asking for a historic load of data from prior to implementation, 

but we will want to review data as it becomes historic (so more than just a rolling 2-week 

period of time).   

 

 QUESTION 18: How much historical data is required to be in the application?  General 

experience with these types of applications is a single year.   

 ANSWER 18:  

For the end users that may be enough, Finance may desire more information for planning 

and trend analysis. I am of the opinion one prior year and the current fiscal year 

 

 QUESTION 19: Does UTMB have a defined Productive and Non-Productive hierarchy of their 

pay/earning codes that can be leveraged 

 ANSWER 18: Yes 

 

 QUESTION 20: Will UTMB be able to deliver all required master data for labor productivity 

solution or will vendor need to create master data?   

 ANSWER 20: N/A 

 

 QUESTION 21: How many job codes/job classifications exist in the HR system   

 ANSWER 21:  

Total number of active job codes in HR system is 1645. Total number of active departments 

is 2890 

 

 QUESTION 22: General dimensionality would be the following dimensions, please confirm any 

changes: Accounts (pay/earning codes, calculated metrics), Time, Scenario, Business Unit, 

Department, Job Code, Employee   

 ANSWER 22:  

Those are the dimensions we are interested in…but this should come from discovery at the 

time of implementation 
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 QUESTION 23: Will UTMB be able to deliver delta files for dimensionality for each daily load 

for those dimensions that change greatly (Job Code, Department, Employee) 

 ANSWER 23: N/A 

 QUESTION 24: Do departments belong to specific business units or are they re-used across the 

business units (Dept 0101 is Med/Surg across all Business Units)   

 ANSWER 24: Yes, departments belong to specific business units 

 

 QUESTION 25: Are there defined upper and lower limits for targets?   

 ANSWER 25: Not currently  

 

 QUESTION 26: Can you easily describe the defined Pay code mapping - clear distinction of 

productive vs nonproductive and other earning code details?   

  ANSWER 26:  

This is in HCM and Kronos both.  However, refer to the answer to question 1, there are 

currently issues in capturing a productive employee that is working in a non-productive 

capacity.  Although orientation and education are considered productive time in 

benchmarking 

 

 QUESTION 27: What systems will be utilized for the following data elements: 

 ANSWER 27:  

Utilization & Volumes – Health  Volume will be Epic (either charges or other data) or a manually entered 

statistic 

Utilization & Volumes – Academic   

Time & Attendance (Employee)  Kronos 

Time & Attendance (CW/Agency)  Kronos 

Scheduling  Kronos 

Benchmark (assume manual files, ActionOI)  Action OI for the Health System 

Budget (Oracle PBCS)  Oracle PBCS / Hyperion 

HR/Payroll (Hours, Dollars or both)  PeopleSoft 

Employee Demographics PeopleSoft 

 

 QUESTION 28: Will client be responsible for providing all data files for consumption or will 

there be a need to pull data directly from systems? 

 ANSWER 28: UTMB will pull all data per supplier specifications 
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 QUESTION 29: Are any departmental volumes captured manually or can they all be sourced 

from system?   

 ANSWER 29:  

There are opportunities to review the areas where we currently capture manual volumes to 

source from a system 

 

 

 QUESTION 30: Is there an idea of number of rows in a bi-weekly time file for given business 

units to understand volume(size) of data?   

 ANSWER 30: N/A 

 

 QUESTION 31: Will there be a need for any mapping exercises of data or will client handle any 

mappings that may be required?   

 ANSWER 31: Yes, there will be a mapping exercise between the supplier and UTMB 

 

 QUESTION 32: Will there be a need to include dollars in the application or will this only include 

hours and units? 

 ANSWER 32:  

There is a need to not only look at wage but also supplemental pay (shift differential, call-

back, … 

 

 QUESTION 33: Is there a need to report float hours as part of any current reports; if so, do you 

capture these hours in your time system currently? 

 ANSWER 33:  

Float is captured in the time system; in some cases this is initiated by the schedule, in others 

it is either by the employee’s clock or the timekeeper’s manual entry. 

 

 QUESTION 34: Does any of the extracts file capture a rolling period? Volume rolling 28, 

adjustments 365, etc. 

 ANSWER 34:  

They are usually daily or for the current period in question (payroll export from Kronos 

 

 

 QUESTION 35: It states that "real time import of labor and volume data".  Are you looking to 

load multiple times per day or load prior day data each day?   

 ANSWER 35: N/A 
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 QUESTION 36: Will IT be able to create/deliver files early AM (1AM-2AM) each day for same 

day loading?   

ANSWER 36:  

Yes, time frame may be 1AM – 4AM based on refresh schedules in production systems 

 

 QUESTION 37: It states that "report time periods need to be customized (every four hours)".  

Does this mean you want to store data at hour levels?  If you are looking at storing data at hour 

levels does your volume/target(budget) data support analytics at this level?   

ANSWER 37: UTMB is only looking to run customizable productivity reports within day 

ranges and not hours 

 

 QUESTION 38: Does "electronic data warehouse" mean the same thing as a standard data 

warehouse?   

 ANSWER 38: UTMB wishes to use its Enterprise Data Warehouse. 

 

 QUESTION 39: What current data integration/ETL tool is utilized for EPM type reporting 

applications?   

  ANSWER 39: EPM Automate in PBCS, Outline Load Utility in Hyperion 

 

 QUESTION 40: Would reporting be daily, bi-weekly or monthly initially or will it need to be a 

combination of all of those?   

 ANSWER 40: Combination of all three 

 

 QUESTION 41: Are you looking for users to interact with reporting or will initial phase be more 

of a push reporting out to end users?   

 ANSWER 41: Initial interaction with reporting 

 

 QUESTION 42: Do you have defined metrics/KPIs that are required of a productivity system or 

are you looking for vendor to provide these metrics and calculations?   

 ANSWER 42:  

We have defined metrics used for budget tracking today, but we are looking to expand this to 

encompass best practice approaches to actively monitor a unit and support correcting in small 

steps rather than large ones when the data is received after the end of a month. 

 

 

 



 

Page 8 of 9 
ADDENDUM NO 01 

RFP 18-015  

 QUESTION 43: Assumption is reporting will be a combination of dashboards and static 

reporting?   

 ANSWER 43: yes 

 

 QUESTION 44: Does UTMB have defined reports that are required or is UTMB looking for 

vendor to provide reporting definitions and needs?   

 ANSWER 44:  

We have our existing reporting elements that will need to be utilized, but as with #3 above we 

will probably need new elements or approaches to get to the desired goal of closer monitoring 

and intervention. 

 

 

 QUESTION 45: Does current reporting allow for breakout and review of labor by productive and 

non-productive levels, including drilling into details? 

 ANSWER 45:  

Currently no system is utilized We do pull this for units on our scheduler product based on 

worked jobs (required for nursing to report direct care hours for benchmarking).  It is not in 

place outside of nursing.  In Hospitals & Clinics we produce monthly reports for an entire 

department that include: regular worked hours, overtime hours, contract labor hours, and 

nonproductive hours 

 

 

 QUESTION 46: Will client be providing a Project Manager from their side to assist in managing 

the client team members?   

 ANSWER 46: Yes, it will be supplied by UTMB Information Services 

 

 QUESTION 47: Have Operating Level Agreements (OLAs) for data availability been defined by 

business unit as of yet? 

  ANSWER 47: N/A 

 

 QUESTION 48: Will there be a requirement to be involved in weekly steering committee 

meetings and preparation of materials for their consumption and review?   

 ANSWER 48: Yes, frequency has not been determined 
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 QUESTION 49: Is there an assumption that the UTMB team will take on some of the build work 

or is it expected that vendor will handle all build?   

 ANSWER 49: The supplier is expected to perform the build tasks with input and 

direction from UTMB subject matter experts 

 

 QUESTION 50: Will training consist of a “Train the Trainer” model or is the expectation that 

vendor will deliver all training to end users of the system and the administrators?   

 ANSWER 50: either is supportable, but it would depend upon the complexity of the 

delivered product. 

 

 QUESTION 51: Are there any blackout dates or time periods that need to be factored into the 

development of the implementation Plan?   

 ANSWER 51: Routine state holidays (they tend to align with federal ones).   

 

 QUESTION 52: Will administration of the application differ by business unit?   

 ANSWER 52: Yes  

 

 QUESTION 53: Could security be different by both Business Unit and Department? (e.g. User A 

should only see departments B & C for Business Unit X, but see departments D & E for Business 

Unit Y 

 ANSWER 53: N/A 

 

 QUESTION 54: Will security be based on responsibility reporting or will it be more role based 

(Executive, Director, Manager, Department, etc)?   

 ANSWER 54:  

Historically we have approached security as a role based setup, granting access to needed 

departments separately.  So, all managers would be able to do the same things, but the 

departments they see would be different. 

 


